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IN THE UNITED STi’}ES DISTRICT COURT , o
y 3 o S
I SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA t T
12. :
3 ’ ¢
: | NOV0144 L MS %=
14 |TAN JAMES FARIAS, an individual, Case No: - -
15 Plaintiff, i COMPLAINT, b% .
16 VS, REQUEST FOR RELIEF, , e
AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL EE;%:
17 |CITY OF CALEXICO, a municipal entity, , e as | g
| CALEXICO POLICE DEPARTMENT, JAMES| 42 US.C. §§ 1983, 1988 g
I8 | LEE'NEUHAHR, an individual, MARIO e
19 ALCARAZ, an individual, and Does 1-10, ‘
inclusive,
20
o Defendants.
21
22
23 ,
{
24 i
25 COMPLAINT !
26 COME NOW Plaintiff, lan James Farias, by and through their undersigned counsel,
27 |requests a jury trial and complains of Defendants as follows: .
28
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THE PARTIES
Plaintiff Ian James Farias is.a natural person and a citizen and at all times relevant was a
resident of the City of Calexico, State of California, and a citizen of the United States of
America.
Defendant Gity of Calexico s, at all timeés relevant, a municipality:duly organized under the
laws of theé State of California. Atall relevant times, the Deféndant:Calexico Police

Depattinieént was:a branch or agency of'the City.

Defendant Jaities Lee Neujahr is the:Chief of Police for the Calexico,and as such; he is

responsible for formulating. executing, and administering the City.of Calexico's laws,
customs, practices, and policies at issue in this lawsuit; has enforced the challenged laws,

customs, and practices against plaintiff, and is in fact presently enforcing the challenged

laws, customs, and practices against Plaintiff. Defendant Neujahr:is sued in both his
individual and official capacities.

. Defendant Mario Alcaraz, is an officer for the City of Calexico’s Police Departimieit, and-as

such, he i$ responsible for executing:and administering the City of Calexico’s laws, customs,
practices,;and policies at issue in this lawsuit; has enforced the challenged laws, customs, and
practices against plaintiff, and is in fact presently enforcing the challenged laws, customs,

‘and.practices against plaintiff. Defendant Alcaraz is sued in both his individual and official

-capacities.

. These Defendants, and DOES 1-10, were agents. servants and employees of each other, of

the:other-named Defendants, and were-acting at all times:within the full-course-and seope of
their'agency and employment, with the full knowledge and consent, either expressed or
impl'\ied:, of their principal and/or. employer and cach of the other-named Defendants and each
of the Defendants had approved or ratified the actions of the other Defendants thereby
‘making:the currently named defendants hercin liable for the acts and/or omissions of their
agents, servants-and/or employees.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This. Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant.to 28 U.8.C. §§ 1331,
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1343, 2201, 2202 and 42 U.S.C. § 1983.
7. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

8. On or-about January 28, 2010, Farias was traveling in his vehicle when he was stopped by

Defendant Alcaraz, for an alleged traffic violation.

9. Atthe time Farias was stopped, he was lawfully transporting an unloaded shotgun in the rear
of his vehicle.

10. Duringsthe stop, Alcaraz learned of the firearm in the rear of Farias’ vehicle and arrested
Farigs for analleged violation of Penal Code section 12025(a)(1). See:Exhibit A.

11. At the time of Farias’ arrest, Penal Code section 12025(a)(1) stated: “A personsis:guilty-of
carrying aconcealed fircarm when he or she does any of the: following: Carries concealed
within &ny vehicle which is under his or her control or direction any pistol, revolver, or other
firearm capable of being concealed upon the person.”

12. At the timie of Farias® arrest, the term “any pistol, revolver, or other firearm capable of being
concealed-upon the person” was the statutory definition of “handguin.” Péndl Code’section
12001(a)(2).

13.The s.h(_)ft_gunf'ifound within Farias’ vehicle was not concealed.

14. The shotgun found within Farias® vehicle was not a “handgun.” -

15. At the time of Farias® arrest, the California Department of Justice — Burcau of Firearms
published.on their website a statement expressly denouncing the general applicability of
Penal Code section 12025 to shotguns, stating:

TRAVELING WITH FIREARMS IN CALIFORNIA.
o '
- SHOTGUNS AND RIFLES
Nonconccalable fircarms (rifles and shotguns) are not generally covered within tlie
'ptfbviéiOns of California Penal Code section 12025 and therefore-are not required to be
transported in a locked container. However, as with any firearm, nonconcealable firearms

.must be unloaded while they are being transported. . . .

Page 3 of 8




Case 3:11-cv-0014# -NLS Document1 Filed 01/2“1 Page 4 of 14

(See:hitp://www.ag.ca.gov/firearms/travel.php.)

16. The California Department of Justice — Bureau of Firearms also publishes the California
Firearms Laws,Booklet. which includes a chapter on “Possession .and Transportation-of
Concealed Weapons™ that discusses Penal Code section 12025 in its subsection entitled
“Carrying a Concealed Handgun Without License on One’s Person or Concealed ina
Vehicle.” (Emphasis added.) (http://ag.ca.gov/firearms/forms/pdf/Cf12007.pdf.).

17. Alcaraz grabbed, handcuffed, and searched Farias® person and vehicle.

18. Alcaraz transported Farias to the Police Department where. he Farias was 'c’hafge_d_with
Violation of Penal Code section 12025(a)(1).

19. Farias was not.chiarged with any traffic violations.

20. During his éntire detention and arrest, Farias complied with all Defendants” commands

without incident.

21, Defendants wére either inadequately trained and instructed as.to.the definition of “handgun,”

or ignored the:longstanding interpretation of the Penal Code section Penal @'(‘)‘_d'e,{'siefcﬁfc‘),n.
12025(a)(1)-on:the Department of Justice’s website, which publicly clarified that Penal Code
section 12025 does not apply to standard length shotguns.

22. Defendants’ failure to train, instruct, and comply with the longstanding interpretation of the
term “handgun” amounts to deliberate indifference to the rights of persons with whom the
police come;into contact, including Plaintiff.

23. Plaintiff never'consented to having his being grabbed, handcuffed, disarmed, detained,
arrested, and his.person and property seized and transported to the City of Calexico’s Police
Department Headquartcrs.

24. Déefendants’hiad no search warrant authorizing them to search Plaintiff’s person.

25. Defendants had no reason for seizing Plaintiff’s property or his person. Because California
Jaw allows individuals to transport unloaded shotguns —and Plaintiff had done nothing to
arouse ‘suspicion, create tumult or endanger anyone's well-being—there were no-articulable
facts to:indicate either criminal activity-or a threat to safety.

26. Atno‘time during the incident did any Defendant reasonably beligve thiat Plaintiff was
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violating:any:law of the United States, the State of California, or the City of Calexico.

27. Défendants have and continue to engage in a pattern and practice of violating the

Constitutionalrights of those who celebrate the right to keep and bear arms gUaraﬁ‘tee‘d7‘by the

Second Amendment through speech and expressive conduct, including Plaintiff.

28. Atiall times material hereto, Defendants-were acting under the-color of state law.

29.. At-all:times material hereto, the officers were acting as police officers for the Calexico Police

Department-and the City of Calexico.

30. At all times.material hereto, Defendants were acting in concert with each other.

31. Asa direct result of Defendants’ conduet, Farias incurred legal fees and costs and.lost pre-
existing contractual career opportunities with the United States Navy.

32..Defendants wére made aware of Farias™ cateer opportunities, but failed to resolve the
underlying false arrest arrest in a timely manner, causing Farias to lose his existing contract
‘with'the United States Navy.

33, On or'absut:September 3. 2010, nearly eight months after his initial arrest, the Calexico
Police Department signed Farias® Petition to Seal and Destroy Arrest'Records pursuant to
Penal-Code.section 851.8(a), which includes a determination by thé'Calexico Police
Départment that Farias “factually innocent.” (Exhibit B.)

34. Due to'the: false arrest. the delay in determining whether to file any charges, and the delay in

issuingafactual finding of innocence; Farias lost his contract with the Navy.

COUNT ]
Unlawful Arrest and Unreasonable Search and Seizure.
Broughtunder 42 U.S.C. §1983

35. Paragraphs 1 through 34 are incorporated as though fully stated herein.

36. At all times ‘on that evening, Plaintiff acted in accordance with all firearm. statutes afid
ordinafices.,

37. At no time-did Defendants attempt to make a reasonable inquiry asto whether Defendant’s
firearri-was a “handgun.”

38. During the encounter with Plaintiff; Defendants never had a reasonable belief that Plaintiff
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was engaged-in criminal activity, that Plaintiff had committed a crime, or that Plaintiff was

about to.commit a crime.

During the encounter with Plaintiff, and without probable cause, Defendants seized: Plaintiff,

searched Plaintiff, handcuffed him, -disarmed him, harassed him, transported him to the City

of Calexico’s Police Headquarters, and held him until Farias :paid“h'i,s bail.

During the:encounter with Plaintiff, Defendants searched PlaintifFwithout'reasonable

suspicion of a crime having taken place and without probable cause to justify the'search or

seizure..
Defendants’ actions during the éncounter violated Plaintiff's rights protected by the United

States Constitution, including the First, Fourth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendinents.

Defendants?actions during the encountér violated PlaintifPs rights, including those protected

by Article 1, Sections 1, 2. and 13 of the California Constitution.

As.a.direct-and proximate result of Defendants™ actions, Plaintiff has suffered.compensable

‘damages in an amount to be determined at trial.

COUNT II
Failure to Properly Train & Supérvise
Brought under 42 U.S.C. §1983

Paragraphs:1 through 34 and 36 through 43, arc incorporated as though fully-stated: herein.

Defendants, as a matter of custom, practice, and policy failed to maintain adequate and

proper training for police officers in the department necessary to educate the officers.as to:the
Constitutional rights of arrestees, to prevent the consistent and. systematic use of excessive
force by arrésting officers, and to prevent the excessive force and extra judicial punishment

of potential arrestees by officers.

Defendants failed to provide adequate training to police officers that hold the power,

authority, insignia, equipment and arms entrusted to them.
Defendants-failed to promulgate and enforce adequate policies:and procedures related to
alternatives to verifying whether a firearm carried openly is unloaded.

Said custom; practice. and policy included a failure to adequately investigate, supervise, and
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discipline.offending officers, which fostered the custom, bractice, and policy within the
Calexico Police Department, which resulted in the above pled facts.

49. Therefore; these Defendants, with deliberate indifference, disregarded‘a duty to protect the.
public from official misconduct.

50. The failure to promulgaie or maintain constitutionally adequate policies regarding training
was-done with deliberate indifference to the right of Plaintiff and others in his position.

51. The'lack of’adequate training as to:the officers in this case caused Plaintiff’s-damages.

PRAYER

Défendants as follows:

1. An order permanently enjoining defendants, their officers; agents; servants.€émployecs, and
all personsin:aétive concert or participation with them who réceive actual notice of the
injunction, from detaining or atresting anyone pursuant to Penal Code section 12025(a)(1)
(or its:correlating revised section number, Penal Code section' 25400) for cartying an
unloaded:shotgun that does not meet the definition of “handgun™ in a vehicle, absent
reasonable articulable suspicion or probable cause that a crime has occurred or-is-about.to

oceur;

w

An order compelling Defendants, to train and instruct their officers, agents, servants
employees, and-all persons in active-concert or participation with.them-as to both the terms
of dnyinjunction issucd as a result of this case and as to the legal definition of the term
"handgun'as it applies to California Penal Code section 12025, (or its correlating revised

‘section number, Penal Code section 25400).

(%

. Declaratory relief consistent with the injunction, including a-declardtion that.Defendants.

violated-Plaintiff's Constitutional-rights, including his First, FC’u‘tth,;Eigch, and Fourteenth

Amendment rights. by detaining him and seizing his person and his -ﬁ'x'earm'i"with'oUtil;p'rob‘a"ble

causeto:believe that his firearm was contraband or evidence of any crime;
4. Award Plaintiff compensatory and incidental damages for Defendants' false arrest of

Plaintiff and-seizing of Plaintiff's property;
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5. Award Plaintiff punitive damages to-protect the peaceable exercise and enjoyment of.the
‘right'or tights secured;

6. Award. Plaintiff costs of suit, including attorney fees and costs pursuant to 42'U.S.C. § 1988;
and

7. Any other further relicf as the Court deems just and appropriate to-protect-the peaceable

exercise’or'enjoyment of the right or rights secured.

Date: January 24,.2011 Respecttully submitted,

Jason A. Davis (Calif. Bar No. 224250)
Davis & Associates
27281 Las Ramblas, Suite 200
Mission Viéjo, CA.92691
Tel: 949.310.0817/Fax; 949.288.6894
E-Mail: J ason@(}al@‘un‘l;awyéi";qféér'h'

/’i M.m—“
‘By: - /_,_.M
Jason A7Davis,

Attorneys for Plaintiff
s

Page 8 of 8




.Case 3:11-cv-0014ﬁ_ -NLS Document1 Filed 01/2“1 Page 9 of 14

EXHIBIT A

!
!
i
¢




Case 3: 11 cv 0014 NLS Document 1 Flled 01/24 Page 10 of 14

o py e e e R TRt

SRS .

P

g }}M IMPERIAL COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
‘PROVPERTY BAG.#: _M,T_%_w.g o ~ BOOKING S

AEPLlCATION beooxma NUMBER;

o . RFLE Numaea.

_"r;iMsow'ﬁﬁggf: e B

. R e A . C-R:NUMEEﬁi'
' DATEANDUMEBOOK&D LERS I I SRR oA RS . e
; .J,T . - . ' 'DRNE@S‘LIC;n ' - S
y S R VS S S
BAILS: e PLEASE‘PRINT OR TYPE SOCIAUSEGURITY: o o ool o

LAST. + . FIRST - MIDDLE «_ L L

v -

" 18l Case/Charge” N Y. 2nd Case/Charga AR A sfdcamlamrqq

. .Gopesecnon - L x T S ES NESELE N s -
s SR s S :
CDEFINITION:, - e w0 5 5 ¢ et e N y

" aads R ‘(”‘ ! v :l’ f‘ . *5" ' - . ‘ ‘ ‘ | . -
LWARRANTCASE®: ot T Y - » , — : A RS,

OQURTE,_1 0 - .

-Ath Case/Chargo. - &hCas/Charge . - . . 7UsihCasefCharal s

CODE SECTION; . .. : -

r . . . o -
) T . .

DEFINITION:! — . L . ST

WARRANTICASEW:

COURT: o - s s R ! i . e
_LOCATIONOFARREST _ .. . _. L e e et _;,;gécgrlgr\!§o@\45chc,em~ T f

T . ~ ven . P [T

DO8. AGE © HEIGHT WEIGHT HAIR EY'E's RACE SEX MAR!TAL smus ) i
Place.ofBirth - : TIMELIVINGN: | . C HOFDFPENDENTS :
SN ' o COUNTY i+ stare S
Scars, Marks, Taltoos: {Describe) - EE R ; "' ; I T . R

Joacn S e - - Y RS s
+ P’ .K&"“ 3 > .
. Hesidence Address:. - - - . Ciy =~ .7 Slate. PR - Hes:Telophone 1,
! ot 1) v R ”t 3 L F di .t Cs i o o A . & " T i ‘;‘ R .. )

Ocqupalion:_ 7 Employer ' Address ~° . Howlong . “ - Talgphone-:
) o Dy e gyt A o e ;
|n Case of Emergency Nomy . ﬁel,‘aﬂqnsh!ib o “oAddress” o T T B Telephone
.0 M 3. ) Lo , ST
et T N O Fed.iD#: __

mza In~‘LOCAL§ — ow:__;__wps.-_, ........ NCIC:.__ Initials: A
LN.S. D P

Currency:. ; ‘ ) Remarks:
P

b //
SO I
$ {',,,n,."»ll LA NN &

-
[P EASCH

PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY!!

k. w«rﬂ;
)
Y

fr - . Snfff‘ SRR -
) ';V LTI o !l A ;ﬁg n}( \ :} ) nk ‘p,, W
i

Arreguﬁ.omaéf" " Transporting Oﬂibéi’ Intake Control n RO Booklng Ofﬂcer/Clerk
B - (Entaredin System)

VDistribution'Hecprdfs (‘Whne) L.N.S/B.P (Green) Medical(Canary), Inmate (Plnk) Ar“a *tmg Agem y(GoIdenrod)

B
"""" 1!!8 E. TS Part)

FIOUEIP I S




Case 3:11-cv-00146 -NLS Document1 Filed 01/24& Page 11 of 14

. EXHIBITB

e b+ b e A et




Case 3:11-cv-00146 -NLS Document1 Filed 01/2%L Page 12 of 14 !

Stato-of Callfornla Dopartment.of Justico
Rogord M'mngomcn\IRocom Soalutg Unit - b
FORM:BCII 8270 (Rav. 7/06). B
Record Seating Unit
P.0. Box 803417, Sacramento, CA 94203.417Q°

PETITION TO SEAL AND DESTROY.ADULT ARREST RECORDS: (Pena! Code851: 8) 1
Print or Type required. Information . ., ) '
“FULL NARE OF PETITIONER Last First Middle " !
: Farias fan Jarnes
IS -, [Bste orBirth DRIVER UCENRSE RUTGER R “'jmmny
P ST ’Cff"Y_i X 29000310 07—136«33“ .
' STREGT NULGVH ' SR RAE i T AR RTEERY OR UM HURAER T !
215 Sterling Ave. ‘
|G T YEGUTT (37 S FEEERET e v ee— :
Calexito | fmperial County OA 92234 !
BT G ARRGET 1037 OF ARRESTRG FGERET RTREY G TUTEER TCWRRGEST Ufs"r‘"ﬁbfﬂﬂ.“ 1. ;
128290 | C"’“’”"‘”/’a liee 105558 20326233501 . | DA Dacinge i
TfNE? . oSt/ 2000 |
s;ewwney#(ennor\ca , . DATE ‘

‘SECHON TO'BECOMPLETED BY LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY/COURT WITH JURISDICTION FOR OFFENSE(S)

_l«haenﬁed UR\ abova information {o be accurate. :
(. 9l 5110 | :

SIGNA] !u RE OF AG!t\CYY)R COURT OFFICER DATE
"RATE TETE BNY AHIERGY OR CCURT A R ORCEU 1T FOLNCY CASH (UMBEN OF COURY. CABE, FJIBER
| ZTe Sus 1. Seansalo (0-0398 :
R R FOTORG T T T T e A O VR TTORH :
: 5w e mrmi e 4 e e i St e e e e i e e de ihe s i
SECTION 76 BE COMPLETED BY LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY (357, 8(1) FC) T :
X[ PEYITION GRANTED (] PETITON DENIED ,
CAh NS ?L\\...EC.L DEPT. /3 /s
PRM PR TYPEN WE'OF AGENCY DATE
G e G/2 170
suswyuaa OF AqF‘I\IC\V DATE
SEGTION TO BE COMPLETED BY COURT GF JURISDICTION (851.8 (bj,. Teior@Re \
[:] PETITION GRANTED D PETITION DENIED
,P"Rmf NAME OF JUDGE DATE

| GIGNATURE OF JUDGE

WAIVER: TIVE RESTRICTION ON FILING WAIVED (8518 (i) PC]

¢ i btk e

PRINT NAME OF AGENCY OFFICER OF JUDGE DATE

SIGNATURE OF AGENCY OFFICER OR JUDGE

Distribution: Deperment of Justice, Record Sealing Unit, PO Box 903417, Sucramento, CA 94203-4170
Dislrict:Attorney
Petitioner
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( Case 3:11-cv-00144-L -NLS Document1 Filed 01/24/11 Page 14 of 14

:Court Name: USDC California Southern
Division: 3

|Receipt Number: CAS022388

tCashier ID: nsiefken

|Transaction Date: 01/24/2011

|Payer Name: KNOX ATTORNEY SERVICES

CIVIL FILING FEE

{ For: IAN FARIAS V CITY OF CELEXICO
Case/Party: D-CAS-3-11-Cv-000144-001
Amount : $350.00

CHECK
Chack/Money Order Num: 2345
. Amt Tendered: $350.00

|
i
i
i
i
i
!
|
l

|Total Due: $350.00
Total Tendered: $350.00
iChange Amt: $0.00

\There will be a fee of $45.00
charged for any returned check.






